Supplementary Appendix

This appendix has been provided by the authors to give readers additional information about their work.

Supplement to: Holman RR, Bethel MA, Mentz RJ, et al. Effects of once-weekly exenatide on cardiovascular outcomes in type 2 diabetes. N Engl J Med 2017;377:1228-39. DOI: 10.1056/NEJMoa1612917

(PDF last updated November 30, 2017)

Contents

Trial Organization2
Inclusion and Exclusion Criteria11
Clinical Event Definitions
Author Disclosures
Figure S1: EXSCEL Study Design
Figure S2: Enrollment, Follow-up, and Vital Status
Table S1: Baseline Characteristics of the Trial Participants by Treatment Assignment (Intention-to-Treat Population)
Table S2: Reasons for Premature Permanent Discontinuation of Study Drug
Change in Physiological and Biochemical Parameters Over Time (Intention-to-Treat Populations)
Figure S3: LDL cholesterol
Figure S4: Triglycerides
Figure S5: Diastolic blood pressure
Figure S6: Forest Plot of Primary and Secondary Endpoints (Intention-to-Treat and Per-Protocol Populations)
Table S3: Rates of the Components of the Primary Composite Cardiovascular Outcome
Table S4: All-cause Mortality: Modalities of Death (Intention-to-Treat Population)
Figure S7: Time to First Adjudicated Myocardial Infarction [Fatal and Non-Fatal] (Intention-to-Treat Population)42
Figure S8: Time to First Adjudicated Stroke [Fatal and Non-Fatal] (Intention-to-Treat Population)43
Figure S9: Prespecified Sensitivity Analyses for the Primary Efficacy Endpoint
Table S5: New Antihyperglycemic Medication Usage During Follow-Up (Intention-to-Treat Population) 46
Table S6: New Concomitant Medication (Cardiovascular and Other) Usage During Follow-Up (Intention- to-Treat Population) 47
Table S7: Post-randomization Diabetes Complications, Expected Events, and Cardiovascular Events of Interest (Intention-to-Treat Population)

Trial Organization

Principal/Chief Investigators

Rury R. Holman, Diabetes Trials Unit, University of Oxford, UK

Adrian Hernandez, Duke Clinical Research Institute, Duke University School of Medicine, Durham, NC, USA

Former PI

Robert M. Califf, formerly of Duke Translational Medicine Institute, Duke University School of Medicine, Durham, NC, USA (June 2009 – 23 Feb 2015)

Executive Committee

Rury R. Holman (Joint-Chair), Diabetes Trials Unit, University of Oxford, UK
Adrian Hernandez (Joint-Chair), Duke Clinical Research Institute, Duke University School of Medicine, Durham, USA
Juliana C. N. Chan, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Shatin, Hong Kong
John B. Buse, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, Chapel Hill, NC, USA
Bernie Zinman, Samuel Lunenfield Research Institute, Mount Sinai Hospital and University of Toronto, Toronto, Canada
Aldo P. Maggioni, ANMCO Research Centre, Florence, Italy
Ambady Ramachandran, India Diabetes Research Foundation and Dr A Ramachandran's Diabetes Hospitals, Chennai, India
Neil Poulter, International Centre for Circulatory Health, NHLI, Imperial College London, UK
Steve Marso, HCA Midwest Health, Texas, USA
Peter Ohman, AstraZeneca Research and Development, Gaithersburg, Maryland, USA
Nayyar Iqbal, AstraZeneca Research and Development, Gaithersburg, Maryland, USA

Former Member

Robert M. Califf, formerly of Duke Translational Medicine Institute, Duke University School of Medicine, Durham, NC, USA

Clinical Leads, Study Teams, and Key Statisticians Clinical Leads

Angelyn Bethel, Diabetes Trials Unit, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK Robert Mentz, Duke Clinical Research Unit, Duke University School of Medicine, Durham, NC, USA Neha Pagidipati, Duke Clinical Research Unit, Duke University School of Medicine, Durham, NC, USA Rishi Patel, Diabetes Trials Unit, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK

Formerly:

Jyothis George, Diabetes Trials Unit, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK (until 2014) Harald Sourij, Diabetes Trials Unit, University of Oxford, Oxford, UK Yee Weng Wong, Duke Clinical Research Unit, Duke University School of Medicine, Durham, NC, USA

Study Teams DCRI

Operations Lead: Karen Hannan (formerly Mary Ann Sellers) Lead CRA: Pat Gottlieb (formerly Paula Lavender, and Dianne Leloudis) Onsite Lead CRA: Yolanda Meadows (formerly Dan Larson, and Heidi Anderson) Lead CEC Coordinator: Mary Elkins CEC Project Leaders: Lynn Perkins and Matt Wilson Safety Team: Allegra Stone Data Management: Andrea Tisch (formerly Lynn Perkins, Kesi Sanders and Curtis Campbell)

DTU:

Project Manager: Irene Kennedy (formerly Paul Heal, Michelle Masterson, Julie Darbyshire) Clinical Trials Administrator: Lorraine Mumtaz (formerly Rajbir Athwal, Andrea Ferch, Priyanka Batra)

AstraZeneca:

Lynne Durborow Jennifer Vincent Andrew Woodall Terry Flanagan Stephanie Gustavson Jasmine Choi Brian Katona Barry Reicher

Key Statisticians

DCRI

Vivian Thompson, Yuliya Lokhnygina (from March 2014)

DTU

Emanuela Pozzi, Abderrahim Oulhaj, Ruth Coleman (until October 2014)

Data Safety and Monitoring Committee

Jean Lucien Rouleau, Montreal Heart Institute, Montreal, Quebec, Canada Stuart J. Pocock, London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine, London, UK Fred Gorelick, Yale School of Medicine, Yale University, Connecticut, USA John McMurray, University of Glasgow, Glasgow, Scotland Matt Riddle, Oregon Health and Science University, Portland, Oregon, USA Robert Gagel, Division of Internal Medicine, University of Texas MD Anderson Center, Houston, Texas **Observer** Tim Collier (Independent Statistician), London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine, London, UK

Operations Committee

Asia Pacific

Australia

Tania Markovic, Metabolism and Obesity Services, Royal Prince Alfred Hospital, Camperdown NSW

Hong Kong

Alice Pik Shan Kong, The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Malaysia

Sim Kui Hian, Head of CRC, Jin Hospital Department of Cardiology, Sarawak

New Zealand

Russell Scott, Don Beaven Medical Research Centre, Christchurch

Phillippines

Araceli Panelo, Institute for Studies on Diabetes Foundation Inc., Marikina City

South Korea

Kun-Ho Yoon, The Catholic University of Korea, Seoul St Mary Hospital, Seoul

Taiwan

Wayne Sheu, Taichung Veterans General Hospital, Taichung

Thailand

Piyamitr Sritara, Ramathboi Hospital Cardiology Unit, Rajthevee, Bangkok

China

Ji Linong, Department of Endocrinology & Metabolism, Peking University People's Hospital, Beijing Chanyu Pan, Chinese PLA General Hospital, Beijing

Huo Yong, Heart Center and Department of Cardiology, PKU-1st Hospital, Beijing

Europe

Guntram Schernthaner, Ka Rudolfstiftung Incl. Semmelweis Frauenklinik, Wien, Austria Chantal Mathieu, UZ Leuven-Campus Gasthuisberg, Leuven, Belgium

Tsvetalina Tankova, University Specialised Hospital for Active Treatment in Endocrinology, Medical University Sofia, Bulgaria

Petr Widimsky, Department of Internal Medicine - Cardiology, University Karlova, Prague, Czech Republic

Markolf Hanefeld, GWT Technical University, Dresden, Germany

Matyas Keltai, Semmelweis University Heart Centre, Budapest, Hungary

Julio Wainstein, The E Wolfson Medical Center, Holon, Israel

Stefano del Prato, PO Cisanello, AOU Pisana, Pisa, Italy

Valdis Pirags, Pauls Stradins Clinical University Hospital. Latvian University, Riga, Latvia

Neli Jakuboniene, UAB Bendrosios medicinos praktika, Kuanas, Lithuania

Adriaan Kooy, Bethesda Diabetes Research Center, Hoogeveen, The Netherlands

Piotr Dziemidok, Instytut Medcyny Wsi Im, Witolda Chodski, Lublin, Poland

Ioan Andrei Veresiu, Emergency County Hospital, Cluj-Napoca, Romania

Alexander V. Dreval, Moscow Regional Scientific Research Clinical Institute, Moscow, Russia

Jan Murin, Univerzitná nemocnica Bratislava, Slovakia

Albert LeCube Torello, Hospital Universitari Arnau de Vilanova, Lleida, Spain

Naveed Sattar, Institute of Cardiovascular and Medical Sciences, University of Glasgow, UK

Olexander Parkhomenko, Inst Kardiologii Strazheska, Kyiv, Ukraine

South Africa

Mohamed Omar, Centre for Diabetes and Endocrinology, Durban, South Africa

Latin America

Argentina

Rafael Diaz, Department of Clinical & Experimental Medicine, Ospedale Cisanello, Santa Fe

Brazil

Renato Lopes, Brazilian Clinical Research Institute, Sao Paulo

Chile

Fernando Lanas, Universidad de La Frontera, Temuco

Colombia

Miguel Urina Triana, Fudación del Caribe para la Investigación Biomédica, Fundacion BIOS, Baranquillar *Mexico*

Jose Luis Leiva-Pons, Hospital Central "Dr. Ignacio Morones Prieto", Av. Venustiano Carranza #2395, zona Universitaria, 78290, San Luis Potosi

USA and Canada

David Aguliera, Baylor College of Medicine, Houston, Texas

Richard Bergenstal, International Diabetes Center at Park Nicollet, Minneapolis

Shaun Goodman, Canadian VIGOUR Center, Toronto

Jean Francois Yale, Royal Victoria Hospital, McGill University Medical Center, Montreal, Quebec

Previous OC members

Australia

Ian Caterson, Boden Institute, University of Sydney, Camperdown, NSW

China

Jianping Weng, Department of Endocrinology, The Third Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-Sen University, Guangzhou

Dayi Hu, Chief Heart Center, People's Hospital, Peking University

Ge Junbo, Zhongshan Hospital Fudan University, Shanghai (*was removed from DCRI list in Aug 2016 due to lack of interest in EXSCEL*)

France

Faiez Zannad, CIC Institute Lorrain de Coeur et des Visseaux Louis Mathieu, Nancy

India

Misra Anoop, Fortis Hospitals, New Delhi

Mithal Ambrish, Medanta Medicity, Gurgaon, Delhi NCR, Haryana

Peru

John Adaly Gallegos, Hopital Militar Central, AV Faustino Sanchez Carron, Lima

Clinical Events Classification Committee

Jennifer B. Green (chair), Axel Akerblom, Karen Alexander, Sana Al-Khatib, Luciana Armaganijan, Pedro Barros, Maria Batit, Gwen Bernacki, Sabrina Bernandez, Gerald Bloomfield, Emily Clausen, Flavio De Souza Brito, Adam DeVore, Keith Dombrowski, Zubin Eapen, Ziad Gellad, Daniel George, Patricia Guimaraes, Sharif Halim, Rob Harrison, Jodi Hawes, Connie Hess, Kristen Hyland, Larry Jackson, Schuyler Jones, Dedrick Jordan, Marcelo Katz, David Kong, Masaya Koshizaka, Wanda Lakey, Thomas LeBlanc, Sergio Leonardi, Renato Lopes, Nancy Luo, Ken Mahaffey, Aditya Mandawat, Rajendra Mehta, Chiara Melloni, Robert Mentz, Michael Morse, Neha Pagidpati, Chetan Patel, Keyur Patel, Sean Pokorney, Tom Posvic, Meena Rao, Matthew Roe, Bimal Shah, Hans Tillmann, Adriano Truffa, Yee-Weng Wong, Ana Zazula, Emily Zeitler

Site Investigators: (in site number order)

Argentina

Maximiliano Sicer, Maria Rosa Ulla, Laura Maffei, Maria Isabel Klyver, Pedro Calella, Andrés Alvarisqueta, Ricardo Leon De La Fuente, Diego Aizenberg, Fernando Roque, Adrian Cruciani, Gustavo Frechtel, Elizabeth Gelersztein, Adriana Villarino, Marcelo Mallagray, Lucrecia Nardone, Cesar Zaidman, Leonardo Novaretto, Ines, Bartolacci, Maria de Salvo.

Australia

Candice Delcourt, Denis Crimmins, Richard Jackson, David O'Neal, Peter Colman, William Jeffries, Peak Mann Mah, Gary Wittert, Tania Markovic, Joseph Proietto, John Amerena, Sharon Marks, Ren Tan, David Colquhoun.

Austria

Thomas Pieber, Heinz Drexel, Rudolf Prager, Christoph Schnack, Fredrich Hoppichler, Peter Fasching, Claudia Francesconi, Anton Luger, Hans-Robert Schoenherr, Christoph Ebenbichler, Bernhard Paulweber, Guntram Shernthaner.

Belgium

Ann Verhaegen, Johan Vanuytsel, Chantal Mathieu, Jean-Paul Thissen

Brazil

Pedro Barros e Silva, Renato Lopes, Carolina Gonzaga, Joao Borges, Miguel Hissa, Rosangela Rea, Paulo Rossi, Antonio Chacra, Freddy Eliaschewitz, Benito Garbelini, Joao Felicio, Nelson Rassi, Fabio Rossi, Mayler Nunes dos Santos, Francisco Bandeira e Farias, Hugo Lisboa, Adriana Costa e Forti, José Kerr Saraiva

Bulgaria

Tsvetalina Tankova, Snejina Kovacheva, Georgi Levterov, Galina Sheinkova, Elena Ilieva, Lyudmila Lyubenova, Velichka Damyanova, Valentina Gushterova, Lilyana Mincheva, Dimitar Illiev, Valentin Ivanov, Roza Bobeva, Zahari Nikitov, Rossitsa Shumkova, Ivaylp Nikolov Lefterov, Sabina Zaharieva, Vyara Videva, Andrian Yakov

Canada

Stephen Cheung, Thomas Elliott, Pravinsagar Mehta, Stuart Ross, Ronald Sigal, Vincent Woo, Shahin Jaffer, Robin Kuritsky, Alan Bell, Richard Dumas, Gilbert Gosselin, Yves Robitaille, Allen Greenspoon, Heather Lochnan, Richard Tytus, Jean-Francois Yale, Lawrence Leiter, Amritanshu Pandey. Zubin Punthakee, Bernard Zinman, Francois Dube, John Sigalas, Murray Pearce, Timothy Woodford, Partha Paul, Ronald Bourgeois, Robin Conway, Guiseppe Mazza, Ronald Hatheway, Jack Misterski

Chile

Fernando Lanas, Carlos Raffo, Claudia Olivares, Juan Godoy, Sergio Potthoff, Claudio Santibañez, Gladys Josefina Larenas Yanez

China

Wei Gu, Feixia Shen, Jianhua Ma, Xiaohui Guo, Qifu Li, Yuming Du, Ji Hu, Linong Ji, Yanbing Li, Hongyan Deng, Yingqing Feng, Ling Liu, Yiming Mu, Changsheng Ma, Shen Qu, Jiangzhong Wang, Yong Wang, Zuyi Yuan, Lihui Zhang, Shuxian Zhou, Tao Yang, Youping Dong, Dongfang Liu

Colombia

Julian Coronel Arroyo, German Perez Amador, Rodrigo Botero Lopes, Carlos Jaramilo, Miguel Urina Triana, Alejandro Orozco Linares, Carlos Alberto Cure Cure, Eric Hernandez Triana, Dora Inés Molina de Salazar, Catalina Rua Marin, Carlos Jose Jaramilo Gomez

Czech Republic

Ivana Kellinerova, Vera Adamkova, Pavel Krami, Tomas Brychta, Jana Havelkova, Katarina Pantikova

Germany

Frank Schoper, Wilgard Pohl, Petra-Maria Schumm-Draeger, Ulrich Julius, Diethelm Tschöpe, Andreas Hamann, Jochen Seissler, Sebastian Schellong, Ludger Rose, Bernd Becker, Thomas Linn, Erika-Maria Oerter, Herman Josef Strotmann, Andrea Mölle, Andreas Pfutzner, Thomas Forst, Tim Schäufele, Andreas Mugge, Michael Lehrke, Ulrich Meyer-Pannwitt, Heidrun Mehling, Ilka Simon-Wagner, Isabelle Schenkenberger, Klaus Busch, Stephan Hermes, Karsten Milek, Bernhard Landers, Martin Grueneberg, Martin Braun, Jörg Nothroff, Wolfram Kamke, Gunter Hergdt, Hans-Dirk Duengen, Klaus Kleinertz, Detlev Kuesters, Agnes-Anette Himpel Boenninghoff, Karl-Fredrich Appel, Axel Schaefer, Tasso Bieler

Hong Kong

Risa Ozaki, Andrea On Yan Luk, Daniel Wai-Sing Chu, Michelle Man-Ying Cheung-Wong, David Chung-Wah Siu, Bryan Ping Yen Yan, Kenny Kung, Samuel Yeung Shan Wong, Chiu-Chi Tsang, Vincent Tok-Fai Yeung, Bernard Man-Yeung Cheung, Hung Fat Tse

Hungary

Gabriella Hodi, Karoly Nagy, Jozsef Lippai, Jozsef Takacs, Tibor Fulop, Zsolt Gaal, Zsolt Pauker, Iren Foldesi, Judit Simon, Tamas Oroszan, Laszlo Futo, Katalin Bezzegh, Andras Nagy, Gyozo Vandorfi, Julianna Kiss, Nora Kesmarki, Erno Kis, Janos Takacs, Andras Papp, Aranka Kovacs, Imre Szakal, Attila Palinkas, Zoltan Czegany, Peter Voros, Istvan Reiber, Zsuzsanna Kerenyi, Eniko Dezso, Istvan Wittman, Janos Penzes, Zsolt Ples, Andras Taller, Katalin Farago, János Tibor Kis, Zsolt Zilahi, Marta Molnar, László Barkai, Margit Mileder, Imre Szentpeteri, Eva Peterfai, Orsolva Lovasz

Israel

Ofri Mosenzon, Oscar Minuchin, Anat Jaffe, Victor Vishlitsky, Ilan Shimon, Julio Wainstein, Amir Bashkin, Naftali Stern, Nizar Elias, Tamir Bental, Adi Butnaru, Basil Lewis, Faiad Adawi, William Nseir, Eliezer Klainman, Tommy Herskovits

Italy

Stefano Del Prato, Mauro Cignarelli, Carlo Maria Rotella, Guiseppe Ambrosio, Paolo Pozzilli, Stefano Genovese, Alessandro Cavarape, Alessandro Salvioni

Latvia

Valdis Pirags, Jelena Sokolova, Inese Strautina, Dace Teterovska, Valda Stalte, Sigita Pastare, Inta Leitane, Liga Lagzdina, Ilze Andersone, Ruta Eglite, Indra Stelmane

Lithuania

Neli Jakuboniene, Andrej Levinger, Lina Barsiene, Marijona Sulskiene, Egle Varanauskiene, Evalda Danyte, Egle Urbanaviciene, Vaidotas Urbanavicius, Lina Zabuliene, Rasa Juskiene, Audrone Velaviciene, Vaida Kakariekiene, Audrone Augusteniene, Dzilda Velickiene, Jurate Lasiene, Dailia Dauksiene, Jonas Čeponis.

Malaysia

Alexander Tong-Boon Tan, Letchuman Ramanathan, Muhammad Radzi Abu Hassan, Florence Tan, Tiong Kiam Ong, Siew Hui Foo, Rohana Abdul Ghani, Wee Kooi Cheah

Mexico

Jose-Luis Leiva-Pons, José Hector Sanchez Mijangos, Ricardo Cabrera Jardines, Margarita Barrientos Perez, Leobardo Sauque Reyna, Marco Antonio Alcocer Gamba, Efrain Villeda Espinosa, Hector Eloy Tamez Perez, Natalia Eloisa De La Garza Hernandez, Sigfrido Miracle Lopes, Santiago Paulino Ramirez Diaz, Roxana Reyes Sanchez, Eduardo Márquez-Rodriguez.

The Netherlands

Vicdan Köse, Christine Voors-Pette, Adriaan Kooy, P.C Oldenburg-Ligtenberg, Willem Wouter van Kempen, Kevin Cox, Jacqueline Hoogendyk, Lindy Swinkels-Diepenmaat, Gloria Rojas-LinganSusanne Kentgens, Stefanie Schipperen, Harold Wessel de Valk, Henk Swart, B. van Bemmel, P.A.M Hoogslag, Michaela Diamant, E.H Serné.

New Zealand

Russell Scott, Andrew Hamer, Sam Wilson, Nicholas Fisher, Paul Dixon, Owais Chaudhri, Veronica Crawford, Dean Quinn, Kingsley Nirmalaraj, Peter Dunn, John Gillies, Rick Cutfield, Jeremy Krebs, Colin Helm, Jane Kerr, Jason Pryke, Geraldine Ebo

Philippines

Geraldine Ebo, Marian Denopol, Araceli Panelo, Ernesto Ang, Norbert Uy, Cecelia Jimeno, Roberto Mirasoi, Elizabeth Paz Pacheco, Myla Custodio, Nemencio Nicodemus Jr., Elizabeth Anne-Fernando Catindig, Marie Magno, Louie Tirador

Poland

Barbara Cylkowska, Teresa Stasinksa, Teresa Silwinska, Michal Sroka, Marek Piepiorka, Romuald Korzeniak, Piotr Dziemidok, Hanna Mirecka, Roman Zaluska, Danuta Pupek-Musialik, Wojciech Homenda, Anna Grabowska, Boguslaw Okopien, Joanna Niegowska, Hanna Pogorzelska, Anna Mikolajczyk-Swatko, Marcin Sikorski, Dariusz Sowinski

Republic of Korea

Seung Jea Tahk, Yoon-Nyun Kim, Chang-Wook Nam, Se-Joong Rim, Chong-Jin Kim, Kyung Mook Choi, Kun-Ho Yoon, In Kyu Lee, In Joo Kim, June Namgung, Keon-Woong Moon, Kee-Sik Kim, Byung-Hee Oh, Won-Young Lee, Sung-Hee Choi, Eun Sook Kim, Sungdae Moon

Romania

Ioan Andrei Veresiu, Nicoleta Mihaela Mindrescu, Gheorgita Aron, Mariana Graur, Nicolae Hancu, Constantin Mlitaru, Valerica Nafornita, Iosif Szilagyi, Amorin Remus Popa, Liliana Monica Angelescu, Gabriela Doina Negrisanu, Daniela Gabriela Zaharie, Mirela Ioana Culman, Georgeta Vacaru, Mircea Munteanu, Silviana Constantinescu, Simona Tivadar

Russia

Alexander Dreval, Olga Barbarash, Leonid Strongin, Sergey Dogadin. Lyudmila Suplotova, Nadezhda Izmozherova, Vyacheslav Marasaev, Alexander Khokhlov, Alexey Repin, Elena Turova, Irina Bondar, Yulia Samoylova, Alexander Sherenkov, Olga Smolenskaya, Konstantin Zrahevskiy, Olga Koshelskaya, Andrey Obrezan

Slovakia

Jan Murin, Andrej Dzupina, Jan Stevlik, Ingrid Buganova, Daniel Pella, Daniela Vinanska, Jaroslav Jascur, Karol Micko, Dalibor Sosovec, Adriana Philippiova, Peter Olexa, Jan Fedacko, Juraj Selecky

Spain

Joana Nicolau, Juan Mediavilla Garcia, Marta Botella Serrano, Albert Lecube, Iñaki Arguelles, José Sabán, Francisco Gómez Cerezo, Alfonso Soto, Diego Bellido, Nuria Sucunza Alfonso, Joan Vendrell Ortega, Luis Alvarez, Juan Garcia Puig, M^a Angustias Quesada, José Contreras Gilbert, Carlos Alexandre Almeida, Francisco José Tinahones, Luis Garcia Ortiz, Manuel Angel Gómez Marcos, Ismael Aomar, Mercè Fernández Balsells

South Africa

Larry Distiller, Trevenesan Padayachee, Aysha Badat, Iftikar Ebrahim, Puvanesveri Naiker, Naresh Ranjith, Ynez Kelfkens, Hemantkumar Makan, Salphy Mogashoa, Muhammed Fulat, Nazira Carim-Ganey, Mahomed Omar, Kathleen Coetzee, Thirumani Govender, Hendrik Nortje, Agatha Wilhase, Saadiya Seedat, Mashra Gani, Graham Ellis, Paul Rheeder, Jeffrey Wing, Suzanne Blignaut, Hilton Kaplan, Hanlie Lottering, Perumal Pillai, Cheryl Louw, Thomas Coetzer

Taiwan

Wayne Huey Herng Sheu, Jung-Fu Chen, Chwen-Yi Yang, Shih-Ting Tseng, Chih-Yuan Wang, Wen-Ter Lai, Yi-Jen Hung, I-Chang Hsieh, Shih-Li Su, Dee Pei

Thailand

Piyamitr Sritara, Yupin Benjasuratwong

United Kingdom

Naveed Sattar, Tejpal Purewal, Anne Milward, Ioannis Dimitropoulos, Sudhesh Kumar, Thomas Barber, Philip Wiles, Chong Dang, Amanda Adler, Sam Philip, Srikanth Bellary, David Price, Ray Oelbaum, Simon Heller, Thozhukat Sathayapalan, John Clark, Graham Leese, Hamish Simpson, Anne Kilvert, Alison Dawson, Timothy Hall, Amrit Takhar, Charles Bundy, Peter Harvey, Sarah Maxwell, N.Jaimeh Asamoah-Owusu, John McKnight, Sudesna Chatterjee, John Calvert, Anthony Wright, Sandra Macrury, David MacFarlane, Andrew Johnson, Jennifer Litchfield, Benjamin Field

Ukraine

Olena Koval, Oleksandr Larin, Olena Levchenko, Lilya Martynyuk, Vitaliy Maslyanko, Iurii Rudyk, Yevgen Suprun, Vira Tseluyko, Volodymyr Botsyurko, Mykola Vatutin, Ivan Fushtey, Olena Grishyna, Petro Kuskalo, Svitlana Panina, Larys Pererva, Liudmyla Prysupa, Zinaida Teliatnikova, Lyubov Sokolova, Maryna Vlasenko, Vadym Berenfus, Olexander Parkhomenko, Olga Gyrina, Mykola Kopytsya, Vadym Vizir, Myroslava Vayda

USA

Michael Shanik, Dana Headapohl, Jorg Pahl, Stephen Aronoff, Anthony Bartkowiak Jr., Anna Chang, Linda Gaudiani, David Kayne, Michelle Look, Naynesh Patel, Joseph Moran, Elmer Stout, John Tsao, Russell Struble, Norman Fishman, Helena Rodbard, Kathryn Lucas, Pamela Dugano-Daphnis, Bryan Merrick, Venkatesh Nadar, Larry Severa, Chris Sorli, Mark Chang, John Reed III, George Grunberger, Catherine Bain, William Bestermann Jr., Emily Morawski, Judith White, Masoud Azizad, Philomena Ukwade, Adolphus Anekwe, Arthur Jimenez, Daniel Weiss, Sinikka Green, Jeffrey Overcash, Charles Eaton, Hal Roseman, Norman Soler, Frank Mikell, Paul Manos, Lawrence Levinson, Edmund Claxton Jr., Robert Weiss, Georges Argoud, Lauren Bickel, Jonathan Wilson, Brian Short, Brian Webster, Robert McNeill, Adrian Schnall, Rex Force, Lawrence Phillips, Kevin Bybee, Alan Forker, Steven Marso, Douglas Denham,

Thomas VonderHaar, John Pullman, Davida Kruger, Fred Whitehouse, Carol Wysham, Mira Baron, Alan Kravitz, Holly Dushkin, Mary Beth Manning, Alan Wine, Naseem Jaffrani, Chhavi Chadha, JoAnn Sperl-Hillen, Robert Busch, Roger Estevez, David Robbins, Negah Rassouli, Tim Garvey, Suzanne Oparil, Robert Eckel, Michael McDermott, Neda Rasouli, Janet McGill, Clinton Corder, David Klonoff, Richard Mills, John Earl, John Kessel, Richard Bergenstal, Robert Cuddihy, Robert Zimmerman, Priya Dayamani, Anne Chang, Elif Oral, Mark Zimering, Jennifer Marks, Kent Farnsworth, Danny Sugimoto, Philip Toth, Anuj Bhargava, Darren McGuire, Anand Rohatgi, Mark Davies, Eric Peden, Kathleen Wyne, Luis Alfonso, Berhane Seyoum, Basil Akpunonu, Mark Feinglos, Peter Reaven, Jeremy Soule, Louis Luttrell, Brian Schactman, Rafael Canadas, Bruce Boggs, Lisa Abbott, Charles Herring, Lon Roberts, Elie Hage-Korban, Ulrich Schubart, Alain Taylon, Alan Tannenbaum, Jeffrey Kingsley, James Lenhard, Mihaela Biscoveanu, Joshua Cohen, Daniel Donovan, Blandine Laferrere, Novelette Thompson, Thomas Wade, Robert Detweiler, Bruce Henson, Anthony White, Arvind Cavale, Chaitanya Ravi, Asha Thomas, Herbert Goodman, Vicki Kalen, Donald Fox, Ira Dauber, Syed Rizvi, Alan Marcus, Mim Mulford, Alexander Higgins, Majed Chane, Veita Bland, Abayomi Osunkoya, Damodhar Suresh, Salman Khan, Lawrence Anastasi, Mandeep Bajaj, Howard Eisen, Sunder Raj Mudaliar, Stephanie Powell, Kenneth Carr, Deviit Tripathy, Nasrin Azad, Paul Wakefield, Roger Acheatel, Peter Bressler, Julius Dean, Mahfouz El Shahawy, John Gilbert, Ihsan Haque, Daniel Humiston, Rodney Ison, Dennis Karounos, Michael Lillestol. Norman Ferrier, Ajay Labroo, Anthony Vo, Ronald D'Agostino, Michael Dulin, Andrew McWilliams, Joseph Hargrove, Edwin Blumberg, Bruce Jackson, Cezar Staniloae, Abraham Salacata, Horacio Hidalgo Jr., Philip Nicol, Michael DiGiovanna, Joseph Soufer, Vahid Mahabadi, Olakunle Akinboboye, Carlos Arauz-Pacheco, Joel Neutel, Kathleen Dungan, Mark Benson, Talessa Powell, Winston Gandy, Sergio Rovner, Martin Berk, Asma Khan, Gilbert Ledesma, Ivy Madu, Bernard Erickson, Mark Radbill, Mark Graves, Gregory Kaczmarek, Son Giep, Caryn Baldauf, Gordon Golden, Kurt Lesh, Cedrice Davis, Narendra Godbole, William Kirby, Naveed Razzague, Bankim Bhatt

Inclusion and Exclusion Criteria

Inclusion Criteria

Each patient must meet the following criteria to be enrolled in this trial:

- a) Patient has type 2 diabetes mellitus
- b) Patient will be able to see a usual care provider at least twice a year
- c) Patient has an HbA1c of ≥6.5% and ≤10.0% and is currently using one of the following treatment regimens:
 - Treatment with up to three (i.e. 0 3) oral AHAs (concomitant use of DPP-4 inhibitors is permitted)
 - Insulin therapy, either alone or in combination with up to two (i.e. 0 2) oral AHAs (use
 of basal and prandial insulins is permitted in any combination of individual or premixed
 insulins)

All patients should be on a stable diabetes management regimen, as assessed by the investigator, at time of enrolment.

HbA1c values must be from within the 3 months prior to randomization. If multiple values are available, the most recent reported value should be used. A patient whose HbA1c is >10.0% may, at the discretion of the investigator, have their oral AHA or insulin therapy adjusted and be re-screened once for HbA1c randomization eligibility (\geq 6.5% and \leq 10.0%).

d) Patients with any level of CV risk and meeting all other inclusion criteria may be enrolled. Recruitment will be constrained such that approximately 30% will not have had a prior CV event and 70% will have had a prior CV event.

A prior CV event is defined as at least one of the following:

- History of a major clinical manifestation of coronary artery disease i.e. myocardial infarction, surgical or percutaneous (balloon and/or stent) coronary revascularization procedure, or coronary angiography showing at least one stenosis ≥50% in a major epicardial artery or branch vessel
- Ischemic cerebrovascular disease, including:
 - History of ischemic stroke; strokes not known to be hemorrhagic will be allowed as part of this criterion; transient ischemic attacks (TIAs) are not included
 - O History of carotid arterial disease as documented by ≥50% stenosis documented by carotid ultrasound, magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), or angiography, with or without symptoms of neurologic deficit
- Atherosclerotic peripheral arterial disease, as documented by objective evidence such as amputation due to vascular disease, current symptoms of intermittent claudication

confirmed by an ankle-brachial pressure index or toe-brachial pressure index less than 0.9, or history of surgical or percutaneous revascularization procedure

- e) Female patients must not be breast feeding and agree to use an effective method of contraception or must not otherwise be at risk of becoming pregnant
- f) Patient understands the trial procedures, alternative treatments available, the risks involved with the trial, and voluntarily agrees to participate by providing written informed consent
- g) Patient agrees to provide permission to obtain all medical records necessary for complete data ascertainment during the follow-up period, and agrees to communication between the trial site and the usual care provider in order to facilitate routine care
- h) Patient is 18 years or older at enrolment

Exclusion Criteria

Each patient meeting any of the following criteria will be excluded from this trial.

- a) Patient has a diagnosis of type 1 diabetes mellitus, or a history of ketoacidosis
- b) Patient has a history of (≥2 episodes) of severe hypoglycemia within 12 months of enrolment
- Patient has ever been treated with an approved or investigational GLP-1 receptor agonist e.g., BYETTA (exenatide), BYDUREON (EQW), VICTOZA (liraglutide), LYXUMIA (lixisenatide), albiglutide, taspoglutide or dulaglutide
- d) Patient is enrolled in another experimental protocol which involves the use of an investigational drug or device, or an intervention that would interfere with the conduct of the trial
- e) Patient has a planned or anticipated revascularization procedure
- f) Pregnancy or planned pregnancy during the trial period
- g) Patient has medical history that indicates a life expectancy <2 years or might limit the individual's ability to take trial treatments for the duration of the trial
- h) Patient has a history or current evidence of any condition, therapy, laboratory abnormality, or other circumstance which, in the opinion of the investigator or coordinator, might pose an unacceptable risk to the patient, confound the results of the trial e.g. if patient cannot comply with requirements of the trial, or likely to interfere with the patient's participation for the full duration of the trial
- Patient has end-stage renal disease or an estimated glomerular filtration rate (eGFR) derived from serum creatinine (using the simple MDRD-4 formula) of <30mL/min/1.73m²
- j) Patient has a known allergy or intolerance to exenatide
- k) Patient has a history of gastroparesis
- Personal or family history of medullary thyroid cancer or MEN2 (Multiple Endocrine Neoplasia Type 2) or calcitonin level of >40ng/L at baseline

NOTE: Serum for calcitonin measurement will be drawn at baseline. Patients may be randomized and initiate study medication prior to the results of the calcitonin measure being available. If a randomized patient is found to have an exclusionary serum calcitonin concentration, they will stop study medication and patients will continue to have follow-up and be part of the Intent-to-Treat analysis.

- m) Patient has previously been randomized in EXSCEL
- n) Patient has a history of pancreatitis
- o) Is an employee of Amylin Pharmaceuticals, LLC, Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, or AstraZeneca.

Eligibility criteria for this study have been carefully considered to ensure the safety of the study patients and that the results of the study can be used. It is imperative that patients fully meet all eligibility criteria.

Clinical Event Definitions

Excerpt from Clinical Events Classification Committee Charter, version 6.0

6.0 Endpoint Definitions

6.1 Stroke

Stroke is defined as the rapid onset of a new persistent neurologic deficit attributed to an obstruction in cerebral blood flow and/or cerebral hemorrhage with no apparent non-vascular cause (e.g., trauma, tumor, or infection). Available neuroimaging studies will be considered to support the clinical impression and to determine if there is a demonstrable lesion compatible with an acute stroke. Strokes will be classified as ischemic, hemorrhagic, or unknown. Confirmed hemorrhagic strokes classified as subdural hematoma will be excluded from any analyses of adjudicated stroke events.

- A. For the diagnosis of stroke, the following 4 criteria should be fulfilled:
 - 1. Rapid onset* of a focal/global neurological deficit with at least one of the following:
 - Change in level of consciousness
 - Hemiplegia
 - Hemiparesis
 - Numbness or sensory loss affecting one side of the body
 - Dysphasia/Aphasia
 - Hemianopsia (loss of half of the field of vision of one or both eyes)
 - Amaurosis fugax (transient complete/partial loss of vision of one eye)
 - Other new neurological sign(s)/symptom(s) consistent with stroke

*If the mode of onset is uncertain, a diagnosis of stroke may be appropriate provided that there is no plausible non-stroke cause for the clinical presentation

2. Duration of a focal/global neurological deficit \ge 24 hours

OR < 24 hours if

- i. This is because of at least one of the following therapeutic interventions:
 - a. Pharmacologic (i.e., thrombolytic drug administration)
 - b. Non-pharmacologic (i.e., neurointerventional procedure (e.g. intracranial angioplasty))

or

ii. Available brain imaging clearly documents a new hemorrhage or infarct

or

- iii. The neurological deficit results in death
 - 1. No other readily identifiable non-stroke cause for the clinical presentation (e.g., brain tumor, trauma, infection, hypoglycemia, other metabolic abnormality, peripheral lesion, or drug side effect)
 - 2. Confirmation of the diagnosis by at least one of the following:

a. Neurology or neurosurgical specialist

b. Brain imaging procedure (at least one of the following):

i.CT scan

ii.MRI scan

iii.Cerebral vessel angiography

c. Lumbar puncture (i.e. spinal fluid analysis diagnostic of intracranial hemorrhage)

d. Other compelling evidence of stroke

- B. If the acute focal signs represent a worsening of a previous deficit, these signs must have either
 - 1. Persisted for more than one week, or
 - 2. Persisted for more than 24 hours and were accompanied by an appropriate new CT or MRI finding

C. Strokes may be sub-classified as follows:

1. Ischemic (Non-hemorrhagic): a stroke caused by an arterial obstruction due to either a thrombotic (e.g., large vessel disease/atherosclerotic or small vessel disease/lacunar) or embolic etiology. Ischemic strokes which cannot clearly be attributed to either a thrombotic or embolic etiology should be designated as Uncertain.

2. Hemorrhagic: a stroke due to a hemorrhage in the brain as documented by neuroimaging or autopsy. This category will include strokes due to primary intracerebral hemorrhage (intraparenchymal or intraventricular), ischemic strokes with hemorrhagic transformation (i.e., no evidence of hemorrhage on an initial imaging study but appearance on a subsequent scan), subdural hematoma,* and primary subarachnoid hemorrhage.
*All subdural hematomas that develop during the clinical trial should be recorded and classified as either traumatic versus non-traumatic.

3. Unknown: the stroke type could not be determined by imaging or other means (e.g., lumbar puncture, neurosurgery, or autopsy) or no imaging was performed.

6.2 Myocardial Infarction

A. Criteria for Acute Myocardial Infarction

The term myocardial infarction (MI) should be used when there is evidence of myocardial necrosis in a clinical setting consistent with myocardial ischemia. Under these conditions, any one of the four following criteria meets the diagnosis for acute myocardial infarction.

1. Spontaneous MI

- Detection of rise and/or fall of cardiac biomarkers (CK-MB or troponin) with at least one value above the 99th percentile of the upper reference limit (URL)* together with evidence of myocardial ischemia with at least one of the following:
 - Symptoms of ischemia
 - ECG changes indicative of new ischemia [new ST-T changes or new left bundle branch block (LBBB)]**
 - Development of pathological Q waves ***
 - Imaging evidence of new loss of viable myocardium or new regional wall motion abnormality

*For cardiac biomarkers, laboratories should report an upper reference limit (URL). If the 99th percentile of the upper reference limit (URL) from the respective laboratory performing the assay is not available,

then the URL for myocardial necrosis from the laboratory should be used. If the 99th percentile of the URL or the URL for myocardial necrosis is not available, the MI decision limit for the particular laboratory should be used as the URL. Laboratories can also report both the 99th percentile of the upper reference limit and the MI decision limit. Reference limits from the laboratory performing the assay are preferred over the manufacturer's listed reference limits in an assay's instructions for use. CK may be used in the absence of CK-MB.

<u>**ECG manifestations of acute myocardial ischemia (in absence of left ventricular hypertrophy</u> (LVH) and left bundle branch block (LBBB)):

ST elevation

New ST elevation at the J point in two anatomically contiguous leads with the cut-off points: ≥ 0.2 mV in men (> 0.25 mV in men < 40 years) or ≥ 0.15 mV in women in leads V2-V3 and/or ≥ 0.1 mV in other leads.

ST depression and T-wave changes

New horizontal or down-sloping ST depression ≥ 0.05 mV in two contiguous leads; and/or new T inversion ≥ 0.1 mV in two contiguous leads.

The above ECG criteria illustrate patterns consistent with myocardial ischemia. In patients with abnormal biomarkers, it is recognized that lesser ECG abnormalities may represent an ischemic response and may be accepted under the category of abnormal ECG findings.

***<u>Definition of a pathological Q-wave</u>

Any Q-wave in leads V2-V3 ≥ 0.02 seconds or QS complex in leads V2 and V3
 Q-wave ≥ 0.03 seconds and ≥ 0.1 mV deep or QS complex in leads I, II, aVL, aVF, or V4-V6 in any two leads of a contiguous lead grouping (I, aVL, V6; V4-V6; II, III, and aVF)^a

^aThe same criteria are used for supplemental leads V7-V9, and for the Cabrera frontal plane lead grouping.

2. Percutaneous Coronary Intervention-Related Myocardial Infarction

For percutaneous coronary interventions (PCI) in patients with normal baseline troponin values, elevations of cardiac biomarkers above the 99th percentile URL* within 48 hours of the procedure are indicative of peri-procedural myocardial necrosis. By convention, increases of biomarkers greater than 3 x 99th percentile URL* (Troponin or CK-MB > 3 x 99th percentile URL*) are consistent with PCI-related myocardial infarction. MB is the preferred biomarker.

If the cardiac biomarker is elevated prior to PCI, $a \ge 50\%$ increase of the value in the second cardiac biomarker sample within 48 hours of the PCI (and Troponin or CK-MB > $3x 99^{th}$ percentile URL*) and documentation that cardiac biomarker values were decreasing (two samples at least 3 hours apart) prior to the suspected recurrent MI is also consistent with PCI-related myocardial infarction.

Symptoms of cardiac ischemia are not required.

3. Coronary Artery Bypass Grafting-Related Myocardial Infarction

For coronary artery bypass grafting (CABG) in patients with normal baseline troponin values, elevation of cardiac biomarkers above the 99th percentile URL within 72 hours of the procedure is indicative of peri-procedural myocardial necrosis. By convention, an increase of biomarkers greater than 5 x 99th percentile URL (Troponin or CK-MB > 5 x 99th percentile URL) plus

 Either new pathological Q waves in at least 2 contiguous leads that persist through 30 days or new persistent non-rate related LBBB

OR

- Angiographically documented new graft or native coronary artery occlusion or other complication in the operating room resulting in loss of myocardium
 OR
- Imaging evidence of new loss of viable myocardium

is consistent with CABG-related myocardial infarction. MB is the preferred biomarker. If the cardiac biomarker is elevated prior to CABG, $a \ge 50\%$ increase of the value in the second cardiac biomarker sample within 72 hours of CABG (and Troponin or CK-MB > 5 x 99th percentile URL) <u>and</u> documentation that cardiac biomarker values were decreasing (two samples at least 3 hours apart) prior to the suspected recurrent MI plus any of the three bullets above is consistent with a peri-procedural myocardial infarction after CABG.

Symptoms of cardiac ischemia are not required.

4. Pathological findings of an acute myocardial infarction

B. Criteria for Prior Myocardial Infarction

No evidence of acute myocardial infarction

AND any one of the following criteria:

- Appearance of new pathological Q waves with or without symptoms
- Imaging evidence of a region of loss of viable myocardium that is thinned and fails to contract, in the absence of a non-ischemic cause
- Pathological findings of a healed or healing myocardial infarction

ECG Changes associated with prior myocardial infarction:

- Any Q-wave in leads V2-V3 ≥ 0.02 seconds or QS complex in leads V2 and V3
- Q-wave ≥ 0.03 seconds and ≥ 0.1 mV deep or QS complex in leads I, II, aVL, aVF, or V4-V6 in any two leads of a contiguous lead grouping (I, aVL, V6; V4-V6; II, III, and aVF)^a
- R-wave ≥ 0.04 seconds in V1-V2 and R/S ≥ 1 with a concordant positive T-wave in the absence of a conduction defect

^aThe same criteria are used for supplemental leads V7-V9, and for the Cabrera frontal plane lead grouping.

C. Criteria for Reinfarction

In patients where recurrent myocardial infarction is suspected from clinical signs or symptoms following the initial infarction, recurrent infarction should be diagnosed if there is a \geq 20% increase of the value between a measurement (cardiac biomarker) made at the time of the initial presentation and a further sample taken 3-6 hours later. This value should also exceed the 99th percentile URL.*

If cardiac biomarkers are elevated prior to the suspected new MI, there must be decreasing cardiac biomarker values on two samples at least 3 hours apart prior to the suspected new MI in combination with other criteria for re-infarction (ECG, imaging).

If biomarkers are increasing or peak is not reached, then a definite diagnosis of recurrent MI is generally not possible.

Clinical Classification of Different Types of Myocardial Infarction

• Type 1

Spontaneous myocardial infarction related to ischemia due to a primary coronary event such as plaque erosion and/or rupture, fissuring, or dissection

• Type 2

Myocardial infarction secondary to ischemia due to either increased oxygen demand or decreased supply, e.g. coronary artery spasm, coronary embolism, anemia, arrhythmias, hypertension, or hypotension

• Type 3

Sudden unexpected cardiac death, including cardiac arrest, often with symptoms suggestive of myocardial ischemia, accompanied by presumably new ST elevation, or new LBBB, or evidence of fresh thrombus in a coronary artery by angiography and/or at autopsy, but death occurring before blood samples could be obtained, or at a time before the appearance of cardiac biomarkers in the blood

• Type 4a

Myocardial infarction associated with PCI

• Type 4b

Myocardial infarction associated with stent thrombosis as documented by angiography or at autopsy

• Type 5

Myocardial infarction associated with CABG

For each myocardial infarction (MI) identified by the CEC, the type of MI may also be described as:

- ST-Elevation MI (STEMI) Also categorize as:
 - Q-wave

- Non-Q-wave
- Unknown (no ECG or ECG not interpretable)
- Non-ST-Elevation MI (NSTEMI) Also categorize as:
 - Q-wave
 - Non-Q-wave
 - Unknown (no ECG or ECG not interpretable)
- Unknown (no ECG or ECG not interpretable)

6.3 Unstable Angina Requiring Hospitalization

Unstable angina requiring hospitalization is defined as:

 Symptoms of myocardial ischemia at rest (chest pain or equivalent) or an accelerating pattern of angina with frequent episodes associated with progressively decreased exercise capacity

AND

2. Prompting an unscheduled visit to a healthcare facility and hospitalization (does not include chest pain observation units) within 24 hours of the most recent symptoms

AND

- **3.** At least one of the following:
- New or worsening ST or T wave changes on resting ECG <u>ST elevation</u>

New ST elevation at the J point in two anatomically contiguous leads with the cut-off points: $\geq 0.2 \text{ mV}$ in men (> 0.25 mV in men < 40 years) or $\geq 0.15 \text{ mV}$ in women in leads V2-V3 and/or $\geq 0.1 \text{ mV}$ in other leads.

ST depression and T-wave changes

New horizontal or down-sloping ST depression ≥ 0.05 mV in two contiguous leads; and/or new T inversion ≥ 0.1 mV in two contiguous leads.

- Definite evidence of myocardial ischemia on myocardial scintigraphy (clear reversible perfusion defect), stress echocardiography (reversible wall motion abnormality), or MRI (myocardial perfusion deficit under pharmacologic stress) that is believed to be responsible for the myocardial ischemic symptoms/signs
- Angiographic evidence of ≥ 70% lesion and/or thrombus in an epicardial coronary artery that is believed to be responsible for the myocardial ischemic symptoms/signs
- Need for coronary revascularization procedure (PCI or CABG) during the same hospital stay. This criteria would be fulfilled if the admission for myocardial ischemia led to transfer to another institution for the revascularization procedure without interceding home discharge

AND

4. No evidence of acute myocardial infarction

6.4 Death

All deaths will be considered cardiovascular unless an unequivocal non-cardiovascular cause of death can be established.

A. Cardiovascular death includes:

Sudden cardiac death, death due to acute myocardial infarction, death due to heart failure, death due to stroke, and death due to other cardiovascular causes, as follows:

- 1. Sudden Cardiac Death: refers to death that occurs unexpectedly and includes the following deaths:
 - Witnessed and instantaneous without new or worsening symptoms
 - Witnessed within 60 minutes of the onset of new or worsening cardiac symptoms
 - Witnessed and attributed to an identified arrhythmia (e.g., captured on an electrocardiographic (ECG) recording, witnessed on a monitor, or unwitnessed but found on implantable cardioverter-defibrillator review)
 - Subjects unsuccessfully resuscitated from cardiac arrest
 - Subjects successfully resuscitated from cardiac arrest but who die without identification of a non-cardiac etiology (Post-Cardiac Arrest Syndrome)
 - Unwitnessed death or other causes of death (information regarding the patient's clinical status preceding death should be provided, if available)
- 2. Death due to Acute Myocardial Infarction: refers to an acute myocardial infarction (MI) leading inexorably to death, generally within 30 days. Death due to known sequelae of MI including mechanical complications, arrhythmia, and/or pump failure, as well as death resulting from a procedure to treat myocardial ischemia or to treat a complication resulting from myocardial infarction should be considered death due to acute MI. The acute myocardial infarction should be verified either by the diagnostic criteria outlined for acute myocardial infarction or by autopsy findings showing recent myocardial infarction or recent coronary thrombus, and there should be no conclusive evidence of another cause of death.

If death occurs before biochemical confirmation of myocardial necrosis can be obtained, adjudication should be based on clinical presentation and ECG evidence.

Death due to a myocardial infarction that occurs as a direct consequence of a cardiovascular investigation/procedure/operation should be classified as death due to other cardiovascular cause.

3. Death due to Heart Failure or Cardiogenic Shock: refers to death occurring in the context of clinically worsening symptoms and/or signs of heart failure (See CHF definition) without evidence of another cause of death.

Death due to heart failure or cardiogenic shock should include sudden death occurring during an admission for worsening heart failure as well as death from progressive heart failure or cardiogenic shock following implantation of a mechanical assist device.

New or worsening signs and/or symptoms of congestive heart failure (CHF) include any of the following:

- a. New or increasing symptoms and/or signs of heart failure requiring the initiation of, or an increase in, treatment directed at heart failure or occurring in a patient already receiving maximal therapy for heart failure
- b. Heart failure symptoms or signs requiring continuous intravenous therapy or chronic oxygen administration for hypoxia due to pulmonary edema
- c. Confinement to bed predominantly due to heart failure symptoms
- d. Pulmonary edema sufficient to cause tachypnea and distress not occurring in the context of an acute myocardial infarction, worsening renal function, or as the consequence of an arrhythmia occurring in the absence of worsening heart failure
- e. Cardiogenic shock not occurring in the context of an acute myocardial infarction or as the consequence of an arrhythmia occurring in the absence of worsening heart failure.

Cardiogenic shock is defined as systolic blood pressure (SBP) < 90 mm Hg for greater than 1 hour, not responsive to fluid resuscitation and/or heart rate correction, and felt to be secondary to cardiac dysfunction and associated with at least one of the following signs of hypoperfusion:

- Cool, clammy skin or
- Oliguria (urine output < 30 mL/hour) or
- Altered sensorium or
- Cardiac index < 2.2 L/min/m²

Cardiogenic shock can also be defined if SBP < 90 mm Hg and increases to \geq 90 mm Hg in less than 1 hour with positive inotropic or vasopressor agents alone and/or with mechanical support.

- **4.Death due to Cerebrovascular Event:** (intracranial hemorrhage or non-hemorrhagic stroke): refers to a cerebrovascular event or a complication of a cerebrovascular event that leads inexorably to death, generally within 30 days after the suspected event. These deaths may be based on clinical signs and symptoms as well as neuroimaging and/or autopsy. There should be no conclusive evidence of another cause of death.
- **5.Death due to Other Cardiovascular Causes:** refers to death due to a cardiovascular cause not included in the above categories (e.g. dysrhythmia, pulmonary embolism, cardiovascular intervention, aortic aneurysm rupture, or peripheral arterial disease). Mortal complications of cardiac surgery or non-surgical revascularization, even if "non-cardiovascular" in nature, should be classified as cardiovascular deaths.

B. Non-cardiovascular death:

Non-cardiovascular death is defined as any death not covered by cardiac death or vascular death. Categories include:

- Pulmonary causes
- Renal causes
- Gastrointestinal causes
- Infection (includes sepsis)
- Non-infectious (e.g., systemic inflammatory response syndrome (SIRS))
- Malignancy (i.e., new malignancy, worsening of prior malignancy)
- Accidental/Trauma
- Hemorrhage, not intracranial
- Suicide
- Non-cardiovascular system organ failure (e.g., hepatic failure)
- Non-cardiovascular surgery
- Other non-cardiovascular

C. Undetermined Cause of Death:

Undetermined cause of death refers to a death not attributable to one of the above categories of cardiovascular death or to a non-cardiovascular cause.

6.5 Congestive Heart Failure Requiring Hospitalization

Congestive heart failure requiring hospitalization is defined as an event that meets <u>ALL</u> of the following criteria (1-5):

- 1. The patient is admitted to the hospital with a primary diagnosis of heart failure (HF)
- 2. The patient's length of stay in the hospital extends for at least 24 hours or a change in calendar date if the hospital admission and discharge times are unavailable.
- **3.** The patient exhibits documented new or worsening symptoms due to HF on presentation, including <u>at least ONE</u> of the following:
 - a. Dyspnea (dyspnea with exertion, dyspnea at rest, orthopnea, paroxysmal nocturnal dyspnea, nocturnal cough in supine position, tachypnea)
 - b. Decreased exercise tolerance
 - c. Fatigue
 - d. Worsened end-organ perfusion

(worsening cerebral, renal, liver, abdominal or gastrointestinal, peripheral circulatory function as manifested by symptoms such as dizziness, lightheadedness, syncope, confusion, altered mental status, restlessness, decline in cognitive state, nausea, vomiting, abdominal

pain, abdominal fullness, abdominal discomfort or abdominal tenderness, cold clammy extremities, discoloration of extremities or lips, jaundice, pain in extremities, reduced urine output, darkening of urine color, chest pain, palpitations)

e. Volume overload

(swelling of lower extremities, swelling or indentation of pressure marks in areas of fluid accumulation such as legs, ankles, lower back; increase in abdominal girth, right-sided abdominal fullness, discomfort or tenderness, increase in body weight, oozing and development of skin breakdown in lower extremities)

 The patient exhibits objective evidence of new or worsening HF, consisting of <u>at least TWO</u> physical examination findings OR <u>ONE</u> physical examination finding and <u>at least</u> <u>ONE</u> laboratory criterion.

Physical examination findings considered to be due to HF, include new or worsened:

- a. Peripheral edema (swelling or pitting indentation when pressed in feet, ankles, legs, thighs, upper extremities, scrotal, pre-sacral area, or abdominal wall)
- b. Increasing abdominal distention or ascites (in the absence of primary hepatic disease.
- c. Pulmonary rales/crackles/crepitations
- d. Increased jugular venous pressure and/or hepatojugular reflux
- e. S3 gallop
- f. Clinically significant or rapid weight gain thought to be related to fluid retention (usually more than 3-4 lbs in 3-4 days)

Laboratory Evidence of HF: Laboratory evidence of new or worsening HF should be obtained within 24 hours of presentation. Laboratory criteria include new or worsened:

- a. Increased B-type natriuretic peptide (BNP) or N-terminal pro-BNP (NT-proBNP) concentrations.
- b. Radiological evidence of pulmonary congestion.
- c. Non-invasive diagnostic evidence of HF (echocardiography, cardiac MRI, Cardiac PET scan, nuclear imaging).
- d. Invasive diagnostic evidence of HF.
- 5. Initiation or intensification of HF treatment, including at least **ONE** of the following:
 - a. Augmentation in oral diuretic therapy
 - b. Intravenous diuretic, or intravenous vasoactive therapy
 - c. Mechanical or surgical intervention, including mechanical circulatory support or mechanical fluid removal.

6.6 Ventricular Tachycardia/Ventricular Fibrillation requiring Intervention

Ventricular Tachycardia/Ventricular Fibrillation requiring intervention is defined as:

Sustained Ventricular Tachycardia (VT)

Sustained Ventricular Tachycardia (VT) is defined as a wide complex tachycardia of ventricular origin:

Lasting > 30 seconds and requiring intervention such as a new medication or medication change directed to VT

OR

Requiring external cardioversion or ICD/AICD therapy (anti-tachycardic pacing or electrical cardioversion)

OR

Resulting in significant hemodynamic compromise

OR

Requiring hospitalization

Ventricular Fibrillation (VF)

Ventricular Fibrillation (VF) is defined as irregular undulations of varying contour and amplitude on ECG with absence of distinct QRS complexes and requiring intervention such as a new medication or medication change directed to VF or associated with external cardioversion or ICD/AICD therapy (anti-tachycardic pacing or electrical cardioversion) or hemodynamic compromise.

6.7 Pancreatitis

Pancreatitis is defined as:

Symptoms of abdominal pain OR vomiting

AND

Objective evidence of pancreatic inflammation:

Elevated pancreatic enzymes, defined by:

- Amylase OR Lipase > 3x the upper limit normal.
- Amylase OR Lipase > 2x the upper limit normal. (In patients with chronic pancreatitis)

OR

Evidence of pancreatitis documented by imaging:

Abdominal CT, MRI or ultrasound showing focal, diffuse and inhomogeneous gland enlargement

Confirmed acute pancreatitis will be graded as *mild or severe*.

To confirm severe pancreatitis, the following criteria must be present:

- 1. Evidence of organ failure (at least one of the following)
 - a. Shock: systolic BP < 90 mm Hg
 - b. Pulmonary insufficiency: Pa02 < 60 mm Hg
 - c. Renal failure: serum creatinine > 2 mg/dl after rehydration
 - d. Gastrointestinal bleeding: > 500 ml/24 hours

- 2. Local complications demonstrated on abdominal CT, MRI, or ultrasound (at least one of the following)
 - a. Pancreatic necrosis (note: hemorrhagic pancreatitis is a pathologic term often used synonymously with pancreatic necrosis)
 - b. Pancreatic abscess
 - c. (Acute) Pancreatic pseudocyst

Confirmed cases of acute pancreatitis not meeting criteria for severe pancreatitis will be classified as <u>mild pancreatitis</u>.

6.8 Neoplasms

The following definitions will be utilized by the CEC for purposes of adjudication neoplasms:

<u>Has a malignancy occurred?</u> The CEC will answer yes to this question if the subject has either evidence of a <u>new malignancy</u> or the <u>first recurrence</u> (during the study period) of a previous cancer.

New malignancies:

- 1. New primary cancer in patients with or without pre-existing cancer, or
- 2. New metastatic cancer in patients without previous diagnosis of cancer, or
 - 3. New metastatic cancer of a clearly distinct histology from any pre-existing cancer

Recurrence of previous cancer:

1. Evidence of <u>first recurrence</u> of a pre-existing cancer during the study period (histological, imaging, or clinical)

AND

2. History of this pre-existing cancer at the time of randomization (i.e. diagnosis of original cancer predates randomization)

AND

3. No evidence to indicate based on histological type or clinical picture that this is a different cancer.

Non-malignant neoplasms which are reported should be classified as benign neoplasms.

Progression of prior malignancy - does not meet EXSCEL definition of malignancy

<u>Date of Initial Detections</u>: This will be the date of initial detection by a treating physician, when the patient demonstrated either clinical symptoms or diagnostic testing results (for example, imaging, laboratory) with evidence of neoplasm that allows for a probable clinical diagnosis. Whichever date can be confirmed to occur first will be used.

<u>Date of histological diagnosis</u>: This will be the date that the diagnosis of Neoplasm was documented by histological and/or cytological evidence.

Status of Disease:

- 1. <u>No evidence of disease</u>: A patient who after treatment has normal tumor markers and no evidence of disease on physical exam or imaging studies.
- <u>Active disease</u>: A patient who has evidence of disease and has either had a new and/or change in treatment since their previous evaluation or could be eligible for a new and/or change in treatment but either refused or did not receive the therapy for another clinical reason (e.g. terminal disease for which alteration in treatment would not be expected to meaningfully prolong life expectancy).
- 3. <u>Stable/Inactive disease:</u> A patient that has evidence of disease, but is not progressing, and has had no new and/or change in treatment since their previous evaluation
- 4. <u>Cannot be determined</u>: Is used to describe cases for which there is not enough information to indicate a classification.

Author Disclosures

RRH reports receiving grants from AstraZeneca during the conduct of the study, and grants and personal fees from Bayer, Boehringer Ingelheim and Merck, personal fees from Novartis, Amgen, and Servier, and other support from Elcelyx, GlaxoSmithKline, Janssen, and Takeda outside the submitted work. MAB reports receiving research support from Merck and Astra Zeneca; participating in advisory boards for Boehringer Ingelheim and NovoNordisk; receiving honoraria, personal fees, and other support from Merck, Novo Nordisk, Astra Zeneca, and Sanofi; and receiving non-financial research support from Bayer and Merck Serono. **RJM** reports receiving grants from AstraZeneca during the conduct of the study, and grants from GlaxoSmithKline and personal fees from Boehringer-Ingelheim outside the submitted work. VBT has no disclosures. YL reports receiving grants from Amylin Pharmaceuticals Inc. (a wholly owned subsidiary of AstraZeneca) during the conduct of the study, and grants from Merck, Janssen Research & Development, GlaxoSmithKline, and Bayer HealthCare AG outside the submitted work. JBB reports receiving grants, non-financial support and other from AstraZeneca, grants from National Institutes of Health award UL1TR001111, during the conduct of the study; grants, non-financial support and other from Eli Lilly, grants, non-financial support and other from GI Dynamics, non-financial support and other from Elcylex Therapeutics, Inc., grants, non-financial support and other from Merck, non-financial support and other from Metavention, non-financial support and other from vTv Therapeutics, other from PhaseBio Pharmaceuticals, Inc, grants, non-financial support and other from AstraZeneca, nonfinancial support and other from Dance Biopharm, grants from Medtronic Minimed, grants, nonfinancial support and other from Sanofi, grants from Johnson & Johnson, grants from Boehringer-Ingelheim, grants from GlaxoSmithKline, grants and other from Intarcia Therapeutics, grants, nonfinancial support and other from Lexicon, grants from Scion NeuroStim, grants, non-financial support and other from Orexigen, grants, non-financial support and other from Takeda, non-financial support and other from Adocia, grants from Theracos, grants, non-financial support and other from Novo Nordisk, other from Insulin Algorithms, grants from Bayer, other from Dexcom, other from Fractyl, other from Shenzen HighTide, other from NovaTarg, other from AstraZeneca HealthCare Foundation, outside the submitted work. JCC reports receiving research grant and/or honoraria for consultancy and/or giving lectures from AstraZeneca, Bayer, Boehringer Ingelheim, Eli Lilly, GlaxoSmithKline, Merck Sharp & Dohme, Novo Nordisk, Pfizer, and/or Sanofi (all proceeds have been donated to the Chinese University of Hong Kong to support research and education; the Chinese University of Hong Kong has received research grants and sponsorships from these companies). JC, SMG, NI and PO are employees of AstraZeneca. APM reports receiving honoraria from Bayer, Novartis, Cardiorentis, Fresenius for participation in study committees. SPM reports receiving grants from The Medicines Company, Novo Nordisk, Abbott Vascular, Amylin Pharmaceuticals, Boston Scientific, Volcano Corporation, and Terumo Medical. He has received consulting fees from Novo Nordisk and St. Jude Medical. NJP reports ownership in: Freedom Health, Inc.; Physician Partners, LLC; RXAdvance, LLC; Florida Medical Associates, LLC. NP reports receiving personal fees and other support from Novo Nordisk during the conduct of the study; personal fees from Servier, Takeda, Novo Nordisk, and AstraZeneca, grants from Diabetes UK, the NIHR EME, Julius Clinical, and British Heart Foundation outside the submitted work. AR reports receiving remuneration for advisory board meetings from Merck, Sharp & Dohme, and AstraZeneca; honoraria for lectures from Bayer, Novo Nordisk, Eli Lilly, Merck, Sharp & Dohme, Sanofi-Aventis, and Novartis; and research grant support from AstraZeneca, Merck, Sharp & Dohme, Novartis, and Sanofi-Aventis. **BZ** reports receiving personal fees from Abbott, Janssen, Sanofi, Eli Lilly, and Merck, and grants and personal fees from AstraZeneca, Boehringer Ingelheim, and Novo Nordisk outside the submitted work. **AFH** reports receiving research funding from AstraZeneca, GlaxoSmithKline, Merck, and Novartis; and consulting fees from AstraZeneca, Bayer, Boehringer Ingelheim, Boston Scientific, Merck, Novartis, and Pfizer.

Figure S1: EXSCEL Study Design





Figure S2: Enrollment, Follow-up, and Vital Status

¹ Subjects were counted as completers if they had vital status assessed as alive or deceased at the trial termination visit and had not withdrawn consent.

² Subjects were counted as lost to follow-up if they were lost and their vital status could not be determined at the trial termination visit.

³ Time from randomization to the time of first MACE event or the time when censored for MACE according to the primary censoring scheme for event-free subjects, divided by the time from randomization to the time of first MACE event or the expected follow-up time for event-free subjects as follows: vital status date at the trial termination visit for subjects counted as completers assessed as alive, the date of death for subjects counted as completers assessed as deceased, and December 5, 2016 (the cut-off date) for subjects who were counted as lost to follow-up or withdrew consent.

Table S1: Baseline Characteristics of the Trial Participants by Treatment Assignment (Intention-to-Treat Population)*

	Exenatide	Placebo
Characteristic	N=7356	N=7396
Age at randomization (years)	62.0 (56.0, 68.0)	62.0 (56.0, 68.0)
Min, Max	21.0, 92.0	24.0, 90.0
<65 years	4392 / 7356 (59.7)	4421 / 7396 (59.8)
≥65 years	2964 / 7356 (40.3)	2975 / 7396 (40.2)
≥75 years	609 / 7356 (8.3)	641 / 7396 (8.7)
Female	2794 / 7356 (38.0)	2809 / 7396 (38.0)
Ethnicity		
Hispanic or Latino	1506 / 7355 (20.5)	1520 / 7395 (20.6)
Not Hispanic or Latino	5849 / 7355 (79.5)	5875 / 7395 (79.4)
Race		
White	5554 / 7354 (75.5)	5621 / 7393 (76.0)
Black	442 / 7354 (6.0)	436 / 7393 (5.9)
Asian	725 / 7354 (9.9)	727 / 7393 (9.8)
Indian (American) or Alaska Native	38 / 7354 (0.5)	35 / 7393 (0.5)
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific	18 / 7354 (0.2)	17 / 7393 (0.2)
Islander		
Hispanic	577 / 7354 (7.8)	557 / 7393 (7.5)
Region		
Europe	3389 / 7356 (46.1)	3399 / 7396 (46.0)
North America	1834 / 7356 (24.9)	1874 / 7396 (25.3)
Latin America	1364 / 7356 (18.5)	1363 / 7396 (18.4)
Asia Pacific	769 / 7356 (10.5)	760 / 7396 (10.3)
European subcategories		
Western Europe	1374 / 7356 (18.7)	1399 / 7396 (18.9)
Eastern Europe	2015 / 7356 (27.4)	2000 / 7396 (27.0)
Diabetes duration (years)	12.0 (7.0, 17.0)	12.0 (7.0, 18.0)
<5 years	1032 / 7331 (14.1)	980 / 7368 (13.3)

≥5 – <15 years	3612 / 7331 (49.3)	3654 / 7368 (49.6)
≥15 years	2687 / 7331 (36.7)	2734 / 7368 (37.1)
Prior CV event at randomization ⁺	5394 / 7356 (73.3)	5388 / 7396 (72.9)
History of cardiovascular disease		
Coronary artery disease	3898 / 7356 (53.0)	3896 / 7396 (52.7)
Cerebrovascular disease	1233 / 7354 (16.8)	1276 / 7396 (17.3)
Peripheral arterial disease	1400 / 7355 (19.0)	1400 / 7396 (18.9)
History of congestive heart failure	1161 / 7355 (15.8)	1228 / 7396 (16.6)
HbA1c (%)	8.0 (7.3, 8.9)	8.0 (7.3, 8.9)
Min, Max	5.9, 12.0	5.6, 12.7
<8%	3546 / 7313 (48.5)	3625 / 7362 (49.2)
≥8%	3767 / 7313 (51.5)	3737 / 7362 (50.8)
eGFR via MDRD (mL/min/1.73m ²)	76.6 (61.3, 92.0)	76.0 (61.0, 92.0)
>90	2127 / 7334 (29.0)	2141 / 7371 (29.0)
60-89	3642 / 7334 (49.7)	3604 / 7371 (48.9)
30-59	1557 / 7334 (21.2)	1620 / 7371 (22.0)
<30	8 / 7334 (0.1)	6 / 7371 (0.1)
Body mass index (kg/m ²)	31.8 (28.2, 36.2)	31.7 (28.2, 36.1)
<30	2659 / 7287 (36.5)	2704 / 7315 (37.0)
≥30	4628 / 7287 (63.5)	4611 / 7315 (63.0)
Cigarette smoking status		
Current	864 / 7353 (11.8)	857 / 7392 (11.6)
Former	2902 / 7353 (39.5)	2889 / 7392 (39.1)
Never	3587 / 7353 (48.8)	3646 / 7392 (49.3)
Antihyperglycemic Medication Usage		
None	107 / 7356 (1.5)	121 / 7396 (1.6)
Oral agents use	6213 / 7356 (84.5)	6278 / 7396 (84.9)
Monotherapy	3070 / 7356 (41.7)	3165 / 7396 (42.8)
Dual therapy	2469 / 7356 (33.6)	2452 / 7396 (33.2)
≥3 oral agents	674 / 7356 (9.2)	661 / 7396 (8.9)
Biguanides	5618 / 7356 (76.4)	5677 / 7396 (76.8)
Sulfonylurea	2697 / 7356 (36.7)	2704 / 7396 (36.6)
Thiazolidinedione	292 / 7356 (4.0)	287 / 7396 (3.9)

Insulin	3397 / 7356 (46.2)	3439 / 7396 (46.5)
Insulin alone	1036 / 7356 (14.1)	997 / 7396 (13.5)
Insulin plus 1 oral agent	1742 / 7356 (23.7)	1795 / 7396 (24.3)
Insulin plus >1 oral agent	619 / 7356 (8.4)	647 / 7396 (8.7)
Pramlintide	1 / 7356 (<0.1)	2 / 7396 (<0.1)
Non-sulfonylurea secretagogues	97 / 7356 (1.3)	105 / 7396 (1.4)
Alpha-glucosidase inhibitors	150 / 7356 (2.0)	150 / 7396 (2.0)
GLP-1 receptor agonist (other than study drug)	0 / 7356 (0.0)	2 / 7396 (<0.1)
Exenatide	0 / 7356 (0.0)	0 / 7356 (0.0)
Exenatide LAR	0 / 7356 (0.0)	0 / 7356 (0.0)
Liraglutide	0 / 7356 (0.0)	2 / 7396 (<0.1)
Other GLP-1 receptor agonist	0 / 7356 (0.0)	0 / 7356 (0.0)
DPP-4 inhibitor therapy	1118 / 7356 (15.2)	1085 / 7396 (14.7)
Sitagliptin	758 / 7354 (10.3)	725 / 7396 (9.8)
Vildagliptin	201 / 7354 (2.7)	193 / 7396 (2.6)
Allogliptin	0 / 7354 (0.0)	3 / 7396 (<0.1)
Saxagliptin	106 / 7354 (1.4)	101 / 7396 (1.4)
Linagliptin	51 / 7354 (0.7)	63 / 7396 (0.9)
SGLT-2 inhibitors‡	49 / 4250 (1.2)	28 / 4290 (0.7)
Dapagliflozin‡	39 / 4250 (0.9)	19 / 4290 (0.4)
Other SGLT-2 inhibitor	10 / 4250 (0.2)	9 / 4290 (0.2)
Other antihyperglycemic agents, not listed	25 / 4209 (0.6)	33 / 4257 (0.8)
Cardiovascular Medication Usage		
Antihypertensive, antianginal, and other	6627 / 7356 (90.1)	6696 / 7396 (90.5)
cardiovascular medications		
ACE inhibitor	3535 / 7356 (48.1)	3647 / 7396 (49.3)
Angiotensin receptor blockers	2334 / 7356 (31.7)	2272 / 7396 (30.7)
Diuretic	3216 / 7356 (43.7)	3227 / 7396 (43.6)
Thiazide	1968 / 7356 (26.8)	1932 / 7396 (26.1)
Beta blockers	4082 / 7356 (55.5)	4129 / 7396 (55.8)
Aldosterone antagonists (e.g.	456 / 7356 (6.2)	456 / 7396 (6.2)
spironolactone)		
Hydralazine	64 / 7356 (0.9)	59 / 7396 (0.8)

Calcium channel blockers	2380 / 7356 (32.4)	2330 / 7396 (31.5)
Alpha 1 blockers	560 / 7356 (7.6)	529 / 7396 (7.2)
Nitrates	1003 / 7356 (13.6)	972 / 7396 (13.1)
Renin inhibitor (e.g. aliskerin)	34 / 7356 (0.5)	37 / 7396 (0.5)
Other antihypertensive	432 / 7356 (5.9)	473 / 7396 (6.4)
Ranolazine	35 / 7356 (0.5)	38 / 7396 (0.5)
Digoxin/digitalis glycoside	173 / 7356 (2.4)	184 / 7396 (2.5)
Antithrombotic and anticoagulant	5442 / 7349 (74.1)	5393 / 7384 (73.0)
medications		
Aspirin	4713 / 7356 (64.1)	4667 / 7396 (63.1)
Low molecular weight heparin	16 / 7356 (0.2)	10 / 7396 (0.1)
Vitamin K antagonist (e.g.	414 / 7356 (5.6)	377 / 7396 (5.1)
warfarin/coumarol)		
Factor Xa inhibitor	35 / 7356 (0.5)	49 / 7396 (0.7)
Direct thrombin inhibitors	45 / 7348 (0.6)	39 / 7374 (0.5)
Other anti-platelet agents	261 / 7356 (3.5)	303 / 7396 (4.1)
Clopidogrel/ticlopidine	1255 / 7356 (17.1)	1269 / 7396 (17.2)
Lipid-lowering medications‡	5734 / 7356 (77.9)	5636 / 7396 (76.2)
Statin‡	5465 / 7356 (74.3)	5380 / 7396 (72.7)
Ezetimibe	347 / 7356 (4.7)	364 / 7396 (4.9)
Fibrate	650 / 7356 (8.8)	641 / 7396 (8.7)
Niacin‡	113 / 7356 (1.5)	151 / 7396 (2.0)
Other Medication Usage		
Hormone replacement therapy	300 / 7356 (4.1)	258 / 7396 (3.5)
Chronic non-steroidal anti-	320 / 7356 (4.4)	324 / 7396 (4.4)
inflammatory drugs		
Chronic COX2 inhibitors	45 / 7356 (0.6)	45 / 7396 (0.6)
Fish oil	498 / 7356 (6.8)	492 / 7396 (6.7)
Proton pump inhibitors	1428 / 7356 (19.4)	1427 / 7396 (19.3)

* Results are median (Q1, Q3) or n/N (%), except where indicated.

⁺ Prior CV event at randomization based on IVRS.

‡ Statistically significant differences: Compared with placebo, there was higher use in the exenatide group of SGLT-2 inhibitors (P = 0.01), dapagliflozin (P = 0.008), lipid-lowering medications (P = 0.01), and statins (P= 0.03). There was higher use of niacin (P = 0.02) in the placebo group. There were no other statistically significant differences by treatment assignment.

Table S2: Reasons for Premature Permanent Discontinuation of Study	7
Drug*	

	Exenatide	Placebo
	N=7356	N=7396
Premature, permanent discontinuation of treatment	3164 (43.0%)	3343 (45.2%)
Patient decision	2231 (30.3%)	2369 (32.0%)
Did not want to give injections	766 (10.4%)	968 (13.1%)
Study drug injection site reactions	249 (3.4%)	134 (1.8%)
GI side effects such as nausea, vomiting, diarrhea	333 (4.5%)	109 (1.5%)
Travel to clinic difficult	209 (2.8%)	245 (3.3%)
Follow-up period too long	14 (0.2%)	23 (0.3%)
Other patient decision	447 (6.1%)	601 (8.1%)
No reason given	213 (2.9%)	289 (3.9%)
Physician / investigator decision	183 (2.5%)	188 (2.5%)
SAE	109 (1.5%)	100 (1.4%)
eGFR <30 mL/min/1.73m ²	80 (1.1%)	95 (1.3%)
Patient died	228 (3.1%)	255 (3.4%)
Other reason	195 (2.7%)	174 (2.4%)

* Permanent discontinuation of treatment as reported by sites.

Change in Physiological and Biochemical Parameters Over Time (Intention-to-Treat Populations)

Data are shown as mean values.

Figure S3: LDL cholesterol



Figure S4: Triglycerides



Figure S5: Diastolic blood pressure



Figure S6: Forest Plot of Primary and Secondary Endpoints (Intention-to-Treat and Per-Protocol Populations)

	Exenatide n (%)	Placebo n (%)	Hazard Ratio (95% Cl)	HR	(95% Cl)	P value
Number of patients (ITT)	7356	7396				
Number of patients (PP)	7263	7302				
MACE						
Intent to treat	839 (11.4%)	905 (12.2%)	⊢ •−-	0.91	0.83, 1.00	0.061
Per protocol	591 (8.1%)	605 (8.3%)	⊢ • ┼ ┥	0.95	0.85, 1.07	0.388
CV-related death						
intent to treat	229 (3.1%)	258 (3.5%)	⊢ • - -	0.88	0.73, 1.05	
Per protocol	142 (2.0%)	165 (2.3%)	⊢−− −− <u></u> −	0.84	0.67, 1.05	
Non-fatal MI						
Intent to treat	455 (6.2%)	470 (6.4%)	⊢ •-∤{	0.95	0.84, 1.09	
Per protocol	332 (4.6%)	307 (4.2%)	F	1.05	0.90, 1.23	
Non-fatal stroke						
Intent to treat	155 (2.1%)	177 (2.4%)	⊢−− +−↓−4	0.86	0.70, 1.07	
Per protocol	117 (1.6%)	133 (1.8%)		0.86	0.67, 1.10	
All-cause death						
Intent to treat	507 (6.9%)	584 (7.9%)	⊢	0.86	0.77, 0.97	0.016
Per protocol	256 (3.5%)	295 (4.0%)	⊢	0.84	0.71, 0.99	0.043
CV-related death						
Intent to treat	340 (4.6%)	383 (5.2%)	⊢−−− −4	0.88	0.76, 1.02	0.096
Per protocol	184 (2.5%)	203 (2.8%)		0.88	0.72, 1.08	0.222
Myocardial Infarction						
Intent to treat	483 (6.6%)	493 (6.7%)	⊢ •	0.97	0.85, 1.10	0.622
Per protocol	351 (4.8%)	317 (4.3%)		1.08	0.93, 1.26	0.311
Stroke						
Intent to treat	187 (2.5%)	218 (2.9%)	⊢−− −−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−−	0.85	0.70, 1.03	0.095
Per protocol	137 (1.9%)	156 (2.1%)		0.85	0.68, 1.07	0.165
Hospitalization for ACS						
Intent to treat	602 (8.2%)	570 (7.7%)	⊢↓ → →	1.05	0.94, 1.18	0.402
Per protocol	454 (6.3%)	375 (5.1%)		- 1.19	1.04, 1.36	0.013
Hospitalization for HF						
Intent to treat	219 (3.0%)	231 (3.1%)	▶ • ↓ 1	0.94	0.78, 1.13	0.485
Per protocol	140 (1.9%)	160 (2.2%)	F	0.85	0.67, 1.06	0.150
		a 1.		<u> </u>		
			0.8 1.0 1.2	1.4		
			<-Exenatide tavoredPlacebo favored->			

MACE is defined as a composite of CV-related death, non-fatal MI or non-fatal stroke. CV-related death includes unknown cause deaths. Myocardial infarction includes fatal and non-fatal events. Stroke includes fatal and non-fatal events. ACS refers to acute coronary syndrome. HF refers to heart failure.

Hazard ratio (active/placebo) and CI are based on Cox proportional hazards regression model, stratified by prior CV event, with treatment group only as explanatory variable.

Intention-to-treat analysis	Exe (N=	natide 7356)	Pla (N=	acebo =7396)	Hazard Ratio† (95% CI)	P value
Outcome	No. (%)	First event rate per 100 patient-yr	No. (%)	First event rate per 100 patient-yr		
Primary composite outcome	839 (11.4)	3.7	905 (12.2)	4.0	0.91 (0.83, 1.00)	<.001 [‡] (non-inferiority) 0.061 [‡] (superiority)
Components						
Cardiovascular death§	229 (3.1)	-	258 (3.5)	-	0.88 (0.73, 1.05)	
Non-fatal myocardial infarction	455 (6.2)	-	470 (6.4)	-	0.95 (0.84, 1.09)	0.628 [¶] (homogeneity among components)
Non-fatal stroke	155 (2.1)	-	177 (2.4)	-	0.86 (0.70, 1.07)	

Table S3: Rates of the Components of the Primary Composite Cardiovascular Outcome*

*The primary composite outcome is the time to the first occurrence of cardiovascular death, non-fatal myocardial infarction, or non-fatal stroke.

⁺ Hazard ratio (active/placebo) and CI for the primary composite outcome are based on Cox proportional hazards regression model, stratified by prior cardiovascular event, with treatment group only as explanatory variable.

⁺ P values based on the Wald statistic. P value for non-inferiority of exenatide versus placebo by a non-inferiority hazard ratio upper 95% CI margin of 1.30.

§ Cardiovascular death includes death of unknown cause.

[¶] Hazard ratio (active/placebo), CI, and P value are computed using Lunn-McNeil competing risk model. P value is from the test of equality of the treatment effect on components of the primary cardiovascular composite outcome, also based on Lunn-McNeil competing risk model.

	Exenatide	Placebo
	N=7356	N=7396
Number of all-cause mortality events	507 (100%)	584 (100%)
Cardiovascular death	230 (45.4%)	241 (41.3%)
Sudden cardiac death	122 (24.1%)	128 (21.9%)
Acute myocardial infarction	28 (5.5%)	15 (2.6%)
Heart failure or cardiogenic shock	42 (8.3%)	46 (7.9%)
Cardiovascular procedure	4 (0.8%)	8 (1.4%)
Stroke	33 (6.5%)	34 (5.8%)
Other cardiovascular causes	1 (0.2%)	10 (1.7%)
Non-cardiovascular death	167 (32.9%)	201 (34.4%)
Pulmonary	8 (1.6%)	14 (2.4%)
Renal	5 (1.0%)	5 (0.9%)
Gastrointestinal	2 (0.4%)	6 (1.0%)
Infection	56 (11.0%)	65 (11.1%)
Non-infectious	0 (0.0%)	1 (0.2%)
Malignancy	68 (13.4%)	78 (13.4%)
Accidental/trauma	13 (2.6%)	13 (2.2%)
Hemorrhage, not intracranial	3 (0.6%)	4 (0.7%)
Suicide	0 (0.0%)	1 (0.2%)
Non-cardiovascular system organ failure	4 (0.8%)	4 (0.7%)
Non-cardiovascular surgery	3 (0.6%)	4 (0.7%)
Pancreatitis	0 (0.0%)	2 (0.3%)
Other non-cardiovascular	5 (1.0%)	4 (0.7%)
Unknown [†]	110 (21.7%)	142 (24.3%)

Table S4: All-cause Mortality: Modalities of Death (Intention-to-Treat Population)*

* Percentages calculated out of all mortality events within treatment arm.

⁺ These are the deaths that could not be classified as either cardiovascular or non-cardiovascular by the Clinical Events Classification Committee. Unknown deaths are counted with cardiovascular deaths for any analyses that includes cardiovascular deaths.

Figure S7: Time to First Adjudicated Myocardial Infarction [Fatal and Non-Fatal] (Intention-to-Treat Population)



Figure S8: Time to First Adjudicated Stroke [Fatal and Non-Fatal] (Intention-to-Treat Population)





Figure S9: Prespecified Sensitivity Analyses for the Primary Efficacy Endpoint

P values for non-inferiority (upper) and superiority (lower) are provided for the primary analysis.

In time-to-event analyses in the Intention-to-Treat population, patients are censored at the earliest of: 1) date of last contact where all elements of the endpoint could be assessed, and 2) the right censoring date. Patients without any assessment of the endpoint were censored at randomization.

Data analyzed in the Intention-to-Treat population using primary censoring scheme and using a Cox Proportional Hazards model that includes treatment as an explanatory factor and prior CV risk group at randomization based on CRF data as stratification variable. Patients without any assessment of the endpoint were censored at randomization.

Data analyzed in the Intention-to-Treat population using cut-off date censoring scheme, where patients censored at the earliest of: 1) date of last contact where all elements of the endpoint could be assessed, and 2) the primary endpoint cut-off date (5 December 2016), using the same Cox Proportional Hazards model as in the primary safety and efficacy analysis. Patients without any assessment of the endpoint were censored at randomization. Events that occurred after study closeout are not included in the Primary Outcome analysis.

On treatment analysis in the Intention-to-Treat population using On-treatment and On-treatment + n days censoring schemes, and using the same Cox Proportional Hazards model as in the primary safety and efficacy analysis. Patients censored at the earliest of: 1) date of last contact where all elements of the endpoint could be assessed, 2) the date of last dose of study medication + n days, where n = 7, 30 and 70 days, and 3) the last censoring date. Patients who never started the study drug were censored at randomization.

In time-to-event analyses in the Per Protocol population, patients are censored at the earliest of: 1) date of last contact where all elements of the endpoint could be assessed, 2) the right censoring date and 3) major protocol violation censoring date.

Table S5: New Antihyperglycemic Medication Usage During Follow-Up (Intention-to-Treat Population)*

	Exenatide	Placebo
	N=7356	N=7396
Biguanides	356 / 7337 (4.9)	450 / 7385 (6.1)
Sulfonylurea	508 / 7337 (6.9)	652 / 7385 (8.8)
Thiazolidinedione	146 / 7337 (2.0)	173 / 7385 (2.3)
Insulin	692 / 7337 (9.4)	1021 / 7385 (13.8)
Pramlintide	7 / 7337 (0.1)	6 / 7385 (0.1)
Non-sulfonylurea secretagogues	52 / 7337 (0.7)	74 / 7385 (1.0)
Alpha-glucosidase inhibitors	50 / 7337 (0.7)	68 / 7385 (0.9)
GLP-1 receptor agonists (other than study	182 / 7337 (2.5)	265 / 7385 (3.6)
drug)		
Exenatide	14 / 7337 (0.2)	43 / 7385 (0.6)
Exenatide LAR	44 / 7337 (0.6)	61 / 7385 (0.8)
Liraglutide	98 / 7337 (1.3)	147 / 7385 (2.0)
Other GLP-1 receptor agonists	55 / 7337 (0.7)	65 / 7385 (0.9)
DPP-4 inhibitor therapy	549 / 7337 (7.5)	782 / 7385 (10.6)
Sitagliptin	368 / 7326 (5.0)	512 / 7375 (6.9)
Vildagliptin	115 / 7326 (1.6)	160 / 7374 (2.2)
Allogliptin	37 / 7327 (0.5)	45 / 7375 (0.6)
Saxagliptin	79 / 7326 (1.1)	118 / 7375 (1.6)
Linagliptin	147 / 7329 (2.0)	181 / 7375 (2.5)
SGLT-2 inhibitors [†]	274 / 4237 (6.5)	401 / 4820 (9.4)
Dapagliflozin	132 / 4236 (3.1)	179 / 4280 (4.2)
Other SGLT-2 inhibitor	160 / 4237 (3.8)	241 / 4280 (5.6)
Other antihyperglycemic agents, not listed	31 / 4196 (0.7)	33 / 4247 (0.8)

*Subjects are considered to have taken a new antihyperglycemic medication if there is no indication of usage at baseline visit as well as indication of usage during at least one post-randomization analysis visit. Subclasses of medication are not mutually exclusive. Results are n/N (%). Denominator consists of subjects whose indication of usage for the class of medication was available at baseline and during at least one post-randomization visit. The denominator for the subclass of medications consists of subjects for whom the following information was available at baseline and during at least one post-randomization visit: the class of medication was taken and the information regarding which subclass of medication was available. † Information regarding SGLT-2 inhibitor usage and 'other antihyperglycemic agent' usage was added to the eCRF on 9 May 2013.

Table S6: New Concomitant Medication (Cardiovascular and Other) Usage During Follow-Up (Intention-to-Treat Population)*

	Exenatide	Placebo			
	N=7356	N=7396			
Antihypertensive, antianginal, and other cardiovascular medications					
ACE inhibitor	732 / 7337 (10.0)	711 / 7384 (9.6)			
Angiotensin receptor blockers	897 / 7337 (12.2)	996 / 7384 (13.5)			
Diuretic	1018 / 7337 (13.9)	1099 / 7384 (14.9)			
Thiazide	1039 / 7337 (14.2)	1094 / 7384 (14.8)			
Beta blockers	746 / 7337 (10.2)	747 / 7384 (10.1)			
Aldosterone antagonists (e.g.	405 / 7337 (5.5)	457 / 7384 (6.2)			
spironolactone)					
Hydralazine	183 / 7337 (2.5)	178 / 7384 (2.4)			
Calcium channel blockers	872 / 7337 (11.9)	931 / 7384 (12.6)			
Alpha 1 blockers	488 / 7337 (6.7)	502 / 7384 (6.8)			
Nitrates	506 / 7337 (6.9)	546 / 7384 (7.4)			
Renin inhibitor (e.g. aliskerin)	94 / 7337 (1.3)	83 / 7384 (1.1)			
Other antihypertensive	512 / 7337 (7.0)	527 / 7384 (7.1)			
Ranolazine	88 / 7337 (1.2)	99 / 7384 (1.3)			
Digoxin/digitalis glycoside	137 / 7337 (1.9)	124 / 7384 (1.7)			
Antithrombotic and anticoagulant medications					
Aspirin	704 / 7337 (9.6)	707 / 7384 (9.6)			
Low molecular weight heparin	137 / 7337 (1.9)	143 / 7384 (1.9)			
Vitamin K antagonist (e.g.	244 / 7337 (3.3)	269 / 7384 (3.6)			
warfarin/coumarol)					
Factor Xa inhibitor	267 / 7337 (3.6)	308 / 7384 (4.2)			
Direct thrombin inhibitors	132 / 7328 (1.8)	127 / 7362 (1.7)			
Other anti-platelet agents	290 / 7337 (4.0)	284 / 7384 (3.8)			
Clopidogrel/ticlopidine	609 / 7337 (8.3)	577 / 7384 (7.8)			
Lipid-lowering medications					
Statin	764 / 7337 (10.4)	821 / 7384 (11.1)			
Ezetimibe	271 / 7337 (3.7)	267 / 7384 (3.6)			

Fibrate	362 / 7337 (4.9)	399 / 7384 (5.4)
Niacin	95 / 7337 (1.3)	93 / 7384 (1.3)
Other medications		
Hormone replacement therapy	297 / 7337 (4.0)	266 / 7384 (3.6)
Chronic non-steroidal anti-	531 / 7337 (7.2)	502 / 7384 (6.8)
inflammatory drugs		
Chronic COX2 inhibitors	153 / 7337 (2.1)	141 / 7384 (1.9)
Fish oil	329 / 7337 (4.5)	306 / 7384 (4.1)
Proton pump inhibitors	1101 / 7337 (15.0)	989 / 7384 (13.4)

*Subjects are considered to have taken a new concomitant medication if there is no indication of usage at baseline visit as well as indication of usage during at least one post-randomization analysis visit. Individual medications are not mutually exclusive. Results are n/N (%). Denominator consists of subjects for whom information regarding usage of medication was available at baseline visit and during at least one post-randomization visit.

Table S7: Post-randomization Diabetes Complications, Expected Events, and Cardiovascular Events of Interest (Intention-to-Treat Population)*

	Exenatide	Placebo		
	N=7356	N=7396		
Diabetes complications				
Any diabetes complications ⁺	1339 / 7046 (19.0)	1409 / 7090 (19.9)		
Number of diabetes complications [‡]				
None	5707 / 7024 (81.3)	5681 / 7070 (80.4)		
1	1047 / 7024 (14.9)	1117 / 7070 (15.8)		
2	221 / 7024 (3.1)	198 / 7070 (2.8)		
3 or more	49 / 7024 (0.7)	74 / 7070 (1.0)		
Amputation (non-traumatic) [§]	128 / 7344 (1.7)	127 / 7389 (1.7)		
Retinopathy§	214 / 7344 (2.9)	238 / 7389 (3.2)		
Blindness due to diabetes [§]	8 / 7344 (0.1)	9 / 7389 (0.1)		
Other diabetic eye disease§	201 / 7344 (2.7)	195 / 7389 (2.6)		
Albuminuria [§]	661 / 7022 (9.4)	727 / 7069 (10.3)		
Microalbuminuria	504 / 7022 (7.2)	530 / 7069 (7.5)		
Macroalbuminuria	154 / 7022 (2.2)	196 / 7069 (2.8)		
Diabetic neuropathy [§]	328 / 7344 (4.5)	320 / 7388 (4.3)		
End stage renal failure needing chronic	55 / 7344 (0.7)	65 / 7389 (0.9)		
peritoneal/hemodialysis (including creation of				
fistula or other vascular access for				
hemodialysis) or renal transplantation [§]				
Chronic peritoneal/hemodialysis	25 / 7344 (0.3)	38 / 7389 (0.5)		
Renal transplant	0 / 7344 (0.0)	2 / 7389 (<0.1)		
Hospitalization due to renal failure	28 / 7344 (0.4)	21 / 7389 (0.3)		
Gangrene [§]	80 / 7344 (1.1)	91 / 7389 (1.2)		
Expected events				
Infections	1795 / 7345 (24.4)	1869 / 7389 (25.3)		
Metabolic conditions associated with diabetes	288 / 7344 (3.9)	330 / 7389 (4.5)		
(including hyperlipidemia/dyslipidemia,				
hypertension and gout)				

Gastrointestinal conditions associated with	437 / 7344 (6.0)	290 / 7389 (3.9)
diabetes		
Hyperglycemia requiring hospitalization	140 / 7344 (1.9)	171 / 7389 (2.3)
Cholecystitis/cholelithiasis	178 / 7345 (2.4)	146 / 7389 (2.0)
Blindness (not due to diabetes)	6 / 7344 (0.1)	6 / 7389 (0.1)
Amputation (traumatic)	2 / 7344 (<0.1)	6 / 7389 (0.1)
Cardiovascular events of interest		
Carotid endarterectomy	31 / 7345 (0.4)	31 / 7390 (0.4)
Carotid angioplasty and/or stenting	22 / 7346 (0.3)	27 / 7390 (0.4)
Renal artery angioplasty and/or stenting	8 / 7345 (0.1)	12 / 7389 (0.2)
Peripheral arterial disease (PAD): ≥50% stenosis	214 / 7344 (2.9)	243 / 7389 (3.3)
of lower extremity artery or ABI <0.9		
Without revascularization	77 / 7344 (1.0)	86 / 7389 (1.2)
With percutaneous revascularization	93 / 7344 (1.3)	110 / 7389 (1.5)
With surgical revascularization	44 / 7344 (0.6)	47 / 7389 (0.6)
PAD: abdominal aortic aneurysm	18 / 7344 (0.2)	12 / 7389 (0.2)
Without surgical repair	12 / 7344 (0.2)	8 / 7389 (0.1)
With surgical repair	6 / 7344 (0.1)	4 / 7389 (0.1)
Cerebrovascular disease: ≥50% stenosis of	111 / 7348 (1.5)	128 / 7390 (1.7)
carotid artery		
Without revascularization	73 / 7348 (1.0)	72 / 7390 (1.0)
With percutaneous revascularization	13 / 7348 (0.2)	26 / 7390 (0.4)
With surgical revascularization	25 / 7348 (0.3)	30 / 7390 (0.4)
Percutaneous coronary intervention	450 / 7346 (6.1)	445 / 7390 (6.0)
Reason for PCI		
Stable angina	85 / 7346 (1.2)	77 / 7390 (1.0)
Unstable angina	138 / 7346 (1.9)	122 / 7390 (1.7)
Post myocardial infarction	90 / 7346 (1.2)	113 / 7390 (1.5)
Other	137 / 7346 (1.9)	133 / 7390 (1.8)
Circumstance		
Elective	266 / 7346 (3.6)	253 / 7390 (3.4)
Urgent	184 / 7346 (2.5)	192 / 7390 (2.6)
PCI type		

Balloon only	31 / 7346 (0.4)	39 / 7390 (0 5)
Stent	389 / 7346 (5.3)	370 / 7390 (5.0)
Unknown PCI	30 / 7346 (0.4)	35 / 7390 (0.5)
Coronary artery bypass graft (CABG) surgery	111 / 7347 (1.5)	121 / 7390 (1.6)
Reason for CABG	, , ,	, , ,
Stable angina	23 / 7347 (0.3)	20 / 7390 (0.3)
Unstable angina	33 / 7347 (0.4)	29 / 7390 (0.4)
Post myocardial infarction	28 / 7347 (0.4)	32 / 7390 (0.4)
Other	27 / 7347 (0.4)	40 / 7390 (0.5)
Circumstance		· ·
Elective	67 / 7347 (0.9)	75 / 7390 (1.0)
Urgent	44 / 7347 (0.6)	46 / 7390 (0.6)
Atrial fibrillation or flutter	322 / 7347 (4.4)	350 / 7390 (4.7)
Deep vein thrombosis	42 / 7347 (0.6)	58 / 7390 (0.8)
Pulmonary embolism	34 / 7347 (0.5)	29 / 7390 (0.4)
Shock/hypotension	131 / 7348 (1.8)	145 / 7390 (2.0)
Cardiac catheterization	725 / 7348 (9.9)	750 / 7390 (10.1)
Stress test	626 / 7337 (8.5)	608 / 7370 (8.2)
Ventricular fibrillation/tachycardia [¶]	41 / 7356 (0.6)	26 / 7396 (0.4)

*Data are n/N (%) and are presented for the 'overall period'; defined as the interval between randomization date, up to and including last known alive date. + 'Any diabetes complication' is defined as the number of subjects who experienced at least one of the following events: amputation (non-traumatic), retinopathy, blindness due to diabetes, other diabetic eye disease, microalbuminuria, macroalbuminuria, end stage renal failure, diabetic neuropathy or gangrene. Denominator for 'any diabetes complication' consists of subjects who experienced at least one event or answered 'No' to all of the questions that make up the composite of 'any diabetes complication' at least one time post-randomization.

[‡] Denominator for the 'number of diabetes complications' consists of those subjects who experienced at least 3 events; otherwise it consists of those who answered all of the questions that make up the composite of 'any diabetes complication' at least one time post-randomization.

§ Component of 'any diabetes complication' row.

[¶] Refers to positively adjudicated events of ventricular fibrillation/tachycardia. The time period for the reporting of adjudicated events is from the date of randomization up to and including the trial termination visit or the last event assessed date, whichever is earlier.